UNITED
NATIONS E

Di str.

Economic and Social GENERAL

Councill

E/ C. 12/ 1996/ SR. 36
5 March 1997

ENGLI SH
Original: FRENCH

COWM TTEE ON ECONOM C, SOCI AL AND CULTURAL RI GHTS
Fi fteenth session

SUMVARY RECORD OF THE FI RST PART ( PUBLI C)*
OF THE 36t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Friday, 22 Novenber 1996, at 3 p.m

Chai rperson: M. GRISSA

CONTENTS
CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS

(a) REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES | N ACCORDANCE W TH ARTI CLES 16
AND 17 OF THE COVENANT (conti nued)

Third periodic report of Belarus (continued)

*  The summary record of the second part (closed) of the meeting appears
as docunent E/C. 12/1996/ SR. 36/ Add. 1

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public nmeetings of the Commttee
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued
shortly after the end of the session

GE. 96- 19300 (E)



E/ C. 12/ 1996/ SR. 36
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 3.05 p.m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS

(a) REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTIES | N ACCORDANCE W TH ARTI CLES 16
AND 17 OF THE COVENANT (agenda item 4) (continued)

Third periodic report of Belarus (continued) (E/ 1994/104/Add. 6
E/ C. 12/ 1995/ LQ 6/ Rev. 1, E/ C. 12/ CA/ 25; HRI/CORE/ 1/ Add. 7)

| npl enentation of article 9 of the Covenant (continued)

1. The CHAI RPERSON i nvited the Bel arusi an del egation to reply to the
guestions put by menmbers of the Conmittee at the previous neeting.

2. Ms. SATOLINA (Belarus) said that the statutory age of retirenment did
not necessarily set a limt to working life. An enployer was entitled to
extend the contracts of workers reaching the age of retirement or to concl ude
new and renewabl e two-year contracts with them The enpl oyee woul d then
receive his or her retirenent pension together with a wage or salary.

3. The Social Protection Fund, established in 1993, was financed from
enpl oyers' and enpl oyees' contributions, fromthe State budget and from
vol untary contributions and various other sources.

4, M . SHCHERBAU (Bel arus) indicated that the information contained in the
written replies (docunent with no synbol, in English only) to the list of

i ssues to be taken up (E/C 12/1995/LQ 6/ Rev.1l) dated from 1994 and sone
changes had occurred since then. The Social Protection Fund had, for exanple,
repl aced the Pensions Fund and the Social Insurance Fund. The Enpl oynment Fund
was designed to finance unenpl oynent insurance and enpl oynment schemes and
functi oned by neans of conpul sory contributions fromenterprises and ot her
economic entities, voluntary contributions and the State budget. Since 1994,
nor eover, there had been a slight increase in the proportion of the State
budget devoted to social protection, public health and education, |argely due
to the ageing of the population

5. Ms. JIMENEZ BUTRAGUENO sai d she found it strange that there should be
such a difference between women and men in terns of the age for retirement.
If wonen had to retire earlier than nmen and were also entitled to | engthy
periods of maternity |eave, they would al ways be considered as suppl enentary
| abour .

| npl enentation of article 10

6. The CHAI RPERSON i nqui red about the effects of the Chernobyl disaster on
children's health and asked what neasures the Bel arusian authorities had taken
to mtigate the problens resulting fromthe accident.

7. Ms. TAYA said that she would like to know whether the | arge outflow of
people fromrural areas observed in Belarus and the many social problenms
associ ated with that phenonenon were due to the former system of |and tenure.



E/ C. 12/ 1996/ SR. 36
page 3

It would be of interest to have information about the current situation in
that regard and to know whether refornms were being contenpl ated.

8. M. TEXIER said that he woul d appreciate further informati on about the
situation of single-parent famlies, as referred to in paragraph 66 of the
report. Concerning divorce, it would be interesting to know what procedures
were applied, what decisions could be taken by the courts regarding the future
of any children and what means were enpl oyed when one of the parents failed to
conply with mai ntenance obligations. Was there real equality between nen and
woren in cases of divorce? Lastly, what was the situation regarding child

| abour ?

9. M . SHCHERBAU (Bel arus) said that 2 m|lion people, including 600,000
children, had been contaninated by the radi oactive fall-out fromthe expl osion
at the Chernobyl nuclear power plant. The statistics showed an increase in
certain di seases, such as thyroid cancer, anmong children. The Bel arusi an
authorities had taken steps to nonitor the health of the people affected, as
wel | as preventive neasures involving the supply of nedicines and
uncont am nated food to the people who had to live in the contam nated zone.

Bel arus was al so receiving substantial aid, particularly fromwestern Europe,
and in that context 10,000 children travell ed abroad each year for follow up
in other countries.

10. Contrary to what Ms. Taya appeared to believe, the process of

urbani zation did not necessarily have negative inplications for econom c
soci al and cultural rights. Belarus was now a nodern society and the
traditional and patriarchal ways of life persisted only in renote areas. To
be sure, Belarus was experiencing sone difficulties in the farm ng sector
essentially because the kol khoz system had not yet changed. |In that regard,
the public would be asked during the referendumto be held shortly whether
they were in favour of the privatization of agricultural |and.

11. Ms. SATOLINA (Belarus) said that supplenentary benefits were provided
for famlies with children, and especially for single-parent famlies. |If one
of the parents failed to nmeet his or her maintenance obligations and paynent
of such mai ntenance could not be secured, an allowance was granted for each
child concerned.

12. Di vorce was governed by the Marriage and Fami |y Code, under which two
procedures were possible: dissolution of the narriage at the civil registry
office in the case of nutual consent, and adjudication by a court in other
cases. |If required to intervene, the court would ascertain which of the
spouses offered the better opportunities for the children and would then set
the amount of maintenance to be paid. Wile the principle of equality between
men and wonen was respected, children were in practice very frequently
entrusted to their nother

13. M . SHCHERBAU (Bel arus) said that the | aw prohibited all forms of child
| abour but in practice, according to the statistics, sonme 50,000 children aged
under 14 years were reportedly not going to school. Those young children

generally perfornmed small jobs to help their famlies. Unfortunately, during



E/ C. 12/ 1996/ SR. 36
page 4

a period of economic crisis, the Belarusian authorities were not in a position
to create the conditions for such famlies to dispense with their children's
financi al assistance.

14. Ms. TAYA asked why people were | eaving the countryside when the cities
could not offer work for everyone.

15. M . SHCHERBAU (Bel arus) replied that city dwellers generally earned nore
and |ived better than rural dwellers, even if housing conditions in urban
areas were sometines poor. The drift fromthe [and m ght, indeed, have
adverse consequences to the extent that it resulted in an ageing rura
popul ati on. The Bel arusian authorities were aware of the need to tackle the
root causes of that problem

| npl enentation of article 11

16. The CHAI RPERSON asked why the production of consumer goods had on the
whol e declined whereas that of alcoholic beverages appeared to have risen
according to the information contained in the witten replies.

17. M. THAPALIA said that he would like to know the percentage of persons
living below the poverty |line and what neasures were being taken to inprove
their situation. In addition, what was the econonmic situation of m grant
wor ker s?

18. M. TEXI ER asked what political neasures were being contenplated to
reverse the decline in purchasing power of the population. Concerning the
right to housing, it would be interesting to know how privatizati on was
affecting rents and what neasures had been taken to control rent increases.

Al so, were there many honel ess people and, if so, what steps were being taken
to inprove their situation?

19. M. AHMED referred to the report of the Economist Intelligence Unit for
the second quarter of 1995, as cited in the country analysis (E/ C 12/ CA/ 25),
whi ch pointed to a deterioration of the econom c situation in Belarus and

i ndi cated that paynent of one tranche of an International Mpnetary Fund (I M)

| oan had al ready been del ayed and that a | oan fromthe European Uni on m ght

al so be postponed if the President of Belarus reneged on his prom ses of
reformor if his authoritarian tendencies hardened into an explicitly
dictatorial reginme. Had those |oans been made avail able or were they
suspended? Coul d Bel arus expect to receive foreign economnm c assistance in the
near future?

20. M . ANTANOVI CH (Bel arus) indicated that al coholismwas frequent in the
Commonweal th of I ndependent States (CIS). During the Soviet era, the | aw had
provi ded for nedical treatnent of alcoholics and research had been under way
to conbat al coholism Lack of resources had ended that project. Enornous
quantities of alcoholic beverages from sone nei ghbouring countries were now
avail able at |l ow prices. The Governnent ainmed to inprove the free
rehabilitation centres for alcoholics and to raise taxes on al cohol




E/ C. 12/ 1996/ SR. 36

page 5
21. Pur chasi ng power had fallen in Belarus but by the year 2000 unenpl oyment
and inflation were expected to decrease. It should be noted that children

students, disabled persons and pensioners were entitled to food all owances.

22. Wth regard to migration, many of the aliens currently in Belarus were
intransit to countries of western Europe. There was no specific |aw covering
such persons and guaranteeing thema m ninum standard of living. The
phenonmenon was not very marked and the authorities were dealing with it.

23. No statistics were avail able on honel essness. The snmall nunber of

homel ess persons did not justify instituting a special programre of

assi stance. There were, however, centres to accomrodate such persons.
Privatization had led to rent increases. Although rents were a third of those
in Warsaw or Moscow, a three-room apartnent costing about $350 a nonth, they
wer e higher than the average wage, which was $100. The Governnment woul d
therefore be subsidizing the construction of apartnments in order to neet its
obligations in respect of housing.

24. Bel arus hoped to regain credibility and win the confidence of foreign

i nvestors. The I M- had del ayed, but not cancelled, paynment of the second
tranche of a loan it had agreed to provide and the Bel arusian authorities were
doing their utnost to clarify the situation. Germany had invested in a nunber
of small and medi umsized enterprises in Belarus, in particular through a

$50, 000 pilot project in the agri-food sector. France was al so reportedly
planning to invest in sonme small and nedi umsized enterprises. |f Belarus did
not manage to deal with the economic difficulties it was experiencing, the
Government woul d request international assistance. However, it had to be
acknowl edged that no one in Europe was ready to invest in Belarusian heavy

i ndustry. The great npjority of the population felt that precedence should be
given to econom c cooperation with the Russian Federation. No politician
would win an election now if he declared that he intended to cooperate with
western Europe. Taking account of the wi shes of the people was, in his view,
a proof of denocracy.

25. The Bel arusi an authorities would provide the Conmttee with statistics
on poverty alleviation within the next six nmonths. Mthers and children were
better protected today.

| npl enentation of article 12

26. M. CEAUSU noted that the Governnent had not replied to the Cormittee's
written questions on article 12. He therefore requested the delegation to
provide information in that regard.

27. M. ANTANOVI CH (Bel arus) said that the health indicators were poor not
because of inadequate inplenmentation of the |aw but because the environnent
was harnful. The Chernobyl disaster had affected a fifth of the popul ation
and had led to an increase in the nortality rate. Sone 600,000 children were
living in the contaninated areas, from which 420,000 peopl e had been
evacuated. Three pharnmaceutical plants had been set up to inprove the supply
of nmedicines to the children and adults of those regions. However, the
privatization of pharmacies nmeant that the nost di sadvantaged persons had
difficulty in obtaining nedicines. The CGovernnent had requested the




E/ C. 12/ 1996/ SR. 36
page 6

pharmaceuti cal industry to reduce by 10 per cent the prices of nedicines for
di sabl ed persons, children and pensioners, and was encouragi ng | oca
production of medicines under foreign |icence. The persons contanm nated were
cared for and given places free of charge in sanatoriunms and conval escent
homes. He wel coned the assistance provided by Europe in that regard and the
fact that thousands of Belarusian children were regularly invited for stays
abr oad.

28. People with serious nental illnesses (question 45 of the |list of issues)
received care free of charge and could be hospitalized, even w thout their
consent or that of their famlies. A panel of psychiatrists would determ ne
whet her a patient should be institutionalized, and in that regard the
authorities kept in mnd the abuses conmitted during the Soviet period.
Governnmental and non-governnental bodi es had not reported any case of w ongful
institutionalization remniscent of the Sakharov affair.

29. Every effort was being nade to educate the public and train specialized
heal th-care staff in order to reduce the nunber of unwanted pregnancies. In
Bel arus, only 15 per cent of the popul ation were Catholics, the mgjority being
Ot hodox. Abortion, which did not give rise to inpassioned debate as in the
Catholic countries, was authorized. Sex education was provided in schools and
civil society favoured increased nedical prevention to conbat AlDS

30. The CHAI RPERSON requested further infornmation on the question of AIDS

31. Ms. JIMENEZ BUTRAGUENO said that she would |ike nore information about
fam |y planning in Belarus, as well as details of the assistance given to
retired persons to enable themto obtain expensive nedicines.

32. M. TEXIER said that he would |like to know what AIDS prevention measures
were being taken. Had there been canpaigns to encourage the use of
contraceptives? Was there any discrimnation against people wth Al DS?
Referring to paragraph 105 of the report, he inquired why the death rate
exceeded the birth rate.

33. M . SHCHERBAU (Bel arus) said that there had been no reported cases of
AIDS in Belarus until early 1996. However, 200 cases had been reported in the
first half of that year in a city of 70,000 inhabitants, nmostly involving drug
abusers who had been contam nated by foreigners. The authorities had
requested assistance fromthe international conmmunity and had intensified
preventive neasures. In that connection, it should be noted that the |aw
prohibited the distribution of narcotics. Arrangenents should be made to
supply addicts with drug substitutes, but Belarus was not in a position to
produce such substances. AIDS testing was anonynous and any nedi cal authority
whi ch nade a diagnosis public would be liable to sanctions. People with Al DS
were treated as citizens in the full sense. Belarus was participating
actively in United Nations efforts to conbat AIDS and to protect human rights.

34. The decline in the birth rate had begun nearly half a century before, as
living conditions had inproved, particularly in the 1970s, according to a kind
of universal |aw which neant that when people had the wherewithal to supply
their own needs it becane unnecessary to have a |arge nunmber of children to
provide for themin old age. The decline had reached a record figure in 1993,



E/ C. 12/ 1996/ SR. 36
page 7

when the death rate had surpassed the birth rate. That year had probably
reflected the cunul ative effect of the econonmic crisis - which made a child a
luxury - and fear about the aftermath of the Chernobyl accident. The trend
was continuing because all those factors were still present.

35. Regar di ng the dissenination of information about nodern nethods of
contraception (question 46), Belarus had a vast network of nedical and famly
counselling centres; it was possible to term nate a pregnancy, and to use
contraceptive nethods.

36. The provision of nmedicines for retired persons was guaranteed by | aw.
Medi ci nes were free for people suffering fromoccupational illnesses, and in
ot her cases they were available at a small charge.

| npl enentation of articles 13 to 15 of the Covenant

37. M. W MER ZAMBRANO asked what provision was nade for the nationa
mnorities to play a role in education, whether they benefited from specia
nmeasures and whet her public instruction was provided in |anguages ot her than
Bel arusi an or Russi an.

38. Ms. SATOLINA (Belarus) replied that, under the Constitution, Belarusian
was the official State |anguage and was taught as the first |anguage. Al ong
wi th Bel arusi an and Russian, pupils were required to learn a foreign | anguage.
In addition, when a national nminority constituted a geographically honbgeneous
comunity, it was possible to set up schools or sinply groups where their own
| anguage coul d be taught. There was al so an Act on National Mnorities, which
recogni zed the right of the mnorities to use their own |anguage and to
establish their own educational institutions and cultural centres.

39. M . ANTANOVI CH (Bel arus) said that on its independence Bel arus had
sought to preserve its language in order to mark its sovereignty clearly, but
in response to public protests the teaching of Russian had been reinstated.
School s had been opened to offer primary education in Belarusian, but only
25,000 out of 1 million schoolchildren had opted for that type of education
since Russian was a | anguage traditionally taught in Belarus and had the
advant age of providing access to universities in the Russian Federation for
those students who spoke it. Although the minorities were entitled by lawto
their own education, nenbers of the minorities were generally scattered anong
t he popul ation and it was therefore difficult to create educational centres
for them There were, neverthel ess, two schools and one private university
where instruction was given in Polish, and three schools where teaching was in
Hebr ew.

40. In response to a question fromthe Chairperson, he explained that the
decl i ning nunber of pupils entering primary schools was due to the significant
drop in the birth rate.

41. Lastly, as Deputy Mnister for Foreign Affairs of Belarus, he wi shed to
announce that a special service would be set up within his mnistry to gather
the information required fromother mnistries and nake sure it was accurate,
so that the reports would reflect the situation in Belarus as it really was,
t he weaknesses of the systemincluded. Cearly, the ideas and standards set



E/ C. 12/ 1996/ SR. 36
page 8

forth in the Covenant had to perneate the whole |life of the country and the
public must be informed; he would hinmself be witing to the President and the
Parliament to advise them on what neasures should be taken. He w shed to end
on an optimstic note. According to the information he had just received,
tensi ons were abating and after the referendumthe President and the
Parliament woul d have a period of three nonths during which passions could be
cal med and progress made by the country along the path of denocracy.

42. The CHAI RPERSON t hanked the Bel arusi an del egation for its frankness and
the clarity of its statenments. The Conmittee was well aware of the country's
current difficulties, which were further aggravated by the aftermath of the
Cher nobyl disaster, and hoped that Belarus woul d overcone them as soon as
possi bl e.

43. The Bel arusi an del egation wit hdrew.

The public part of the neeting rose at 4.55 p. m




